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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION
The Hong Kong Academy for Gifted Education (HKAGE), a subvented non-

government organisation, was established in 2008. Our Board of Directors is drawn
from representative sections of our stakeholders.

The HKAGE aims at serving the education sector in Hong Kong, offering high quality
information, support and appropriate learning opportunities to gifted students, their
parents, teachers and other stakeholders engaged in gifted education. Most of its
programmes are provided free-of-charge.
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MAJOR EVENTS

B2

Legislative Council (LegCo) agreed on partial
funding for the Education Bureau (EDB) to set
up the HKAGE
FERERNENHERRLEAEEHE
258 (838) RENAX

2 0 0 8 HKAGE preparatory work completed and service began
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Tiered face-to-face and online secondary

student programmes in place
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Started piloting primary programmes

FESTE/NPREE
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The HKAGE met LegCo's three-year
performance pledges
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Research Division established
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MAJOR EVENTS

BRHE

. Advanced Learning Experiences Division
established
P 3L ERS 2R B RaBa TR
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Affective Education Division established

ROLERHER

The HKAGE became a subvented organisation of
the EDB

B ANERE TN EKE

Received HK$21 million funding from the Hong
Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust on Affective
Education under the ‘Gifted in Bloom - Harmony in
Heart & Mind' Programme
BEAERSREETERB T BEATTH
17 THIBEREERS L 58 RRBEBHE

Collaboration with local and overseas universities
and organisations started. A range of programmes
has been offered at the North-West New Territories
FIIRIRAH RIB IV KB RS ETTIRHAE - WEHR
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Commencement of the Talent Development Pilot
Scheme in September 2018 (The Interim Report
(Extract) is in Appendix I)
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The HKAGE started supporting the
HKAGE staff to present academic
papers at international gifted
education conferences

RIAFRRR THEFERYES
BLERRBWNE

MAJOREVENTS | E84=




VISION AND MISSION
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VISION

The HKAGE aims to become a regional hub of its kind with an
effective framework for strategic planning and delivery of appropriate
programmes to encourage and nurture gifted students, and to provide
support to their teachers and parents as well as other researchers and

related organisations within the Hong Kong SAR.
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MISSION

Specifically, our mission is to secure appropriate learning and development opportunities for gifted
students, aged 10 to 18 years, to enable them to realise their potential in a wide range of learning
domains including academic and other areas covering leadership, creativity and interpersonal skills, and

to address their social and emotional needs as well as their sense of commitment to the local community.

In addition, we also have to

® mobilise and steer the interest and effort of parents, teachers, academics as well as business and
community leaders with a view to creating a conducive and enriching learning environment for all
gifted students;

® facilitate the professional development of teachers in the identification and support of gifted students
within the school context;

® develop, through partnership with like-minded organisations, both locally and in other countries,
a knowledge hub for furthering research on gifted education and the exchange of ideas and best

practice.
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his is my 6th year serving the Hong Kong Academy
Tfor Gifted Education (HKAGE) as the Chairman of the
Board of Directors and it will also mark the end of my term.
| am delighted to have witnessed the tremendous growth
and positive development of the HKAGE. The HKAGE
is just like a tree constantly thriving, the seed of Gifted
Education was sown since 2006, when the Policy Address
delivered in October 2006, the Chief Executive announced
the establishment of an academy for gifted education to
provide more structured, articulated and challenging off-
site programmes for students with exceptional talents, and

to promote the concepts and practices of gifted education

to support teachers and parents.

Established in 2008, the HKAGE kick-started with funding
from the Government of Hong Kong and a donation from
Sir Joseph Hotung. Time flies, the HKAGE has entered its
11th year and we are looking forward to a new chapter, to
serve the gifted education landscape to face the challenge
in the coming decade. We will continue our role as a non-
government organisation (NGO) that to become a regional
leader through the delivery of appropriate programmes to
encourage and nurture gifted students, aged 10-18, and to
provide support to teachers and parents as well as other
stakeholders within the Hong Kong SAR.

The Academy’s mission is to ensure appropriate
learning and development opportunities for the holistic
development of gifted students, to enable them to foster
their multiple potentials in various learning domains,
including academic and non-academic areas, and to cater
for their affective needs. Starting from September 2017,
the HKAGE has become a subvented organisation to the
Education Bureau. The repositioning of the HKAGE means

that we must shoulder a higher responsibility in nurturing

MR
{OREWORD

talents in Hong Kong. Last year, the Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust also funded a three-year programme,
and thus inputting more resources on our affective

education programmes.

| am grateful for the dedication and commitment of all
members of the Board. We have conducted many strategic
discussions to identify what roles the HKAGE can best
play to support gifted education in this rapidly changing
world. We have seen the HKAGE successfully launching
various kinds of academic and affective programmes
for students, and parents support our gifted students to
unleash their potential for the best interest of themselves
and the Hong Kong community. We also equip teachers
with the knowledge and skills to meet the learning needs
of gifted students. What is more, cross-institutional and
international collaboration opportunities have been

explored for the benefits of exceptionally gifted students.

Once again, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my deepest gratitude to the board of directors, to the
senior management team, and the professional team for
their unreserved support. My heartfelt thanks also go to
our gifted education service providers, gifted education
partners, tertiary institutions’ joining effort to create a
unique gifted education blueprint in Hong Kong. With your
support, we will continue our quest for excellence in gifted
education through development of timely programmes to
the needs of gifted students in a fast and ever-changing

world.

Frederick Lam
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the HKAGE
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OUTLOOK

I n my eyes, every school child is unique and talented. They are all gifted students.

The key to unlock their giftedness is to nurture them according to their strengths
and interests, and to deliver learning support in the areas they need to improve.
These are in line with the noble goals of the HKAGE.

After my two years’ service with the Committee on Gifted Education under the
Curriculum Development Council, | am honoured and privileged to be appointed
this year as successor to Mr Frederick Lam to serve the HKAGE as Chairman of
the Board of Directors. | sincerely thank the Education Bureau for giving me this
invaluable opportunity, so that | can learn more about gifted education and, at the

same time, be able to contribute in this regard.

Gifted education is a challenging profession. Not only should we teach students
according to their aptitudes, but we should also offer enhancement and remedial
support to cope with student diversity so that students’ giftedness can be fully
unleashed. In the HKAGE, diversified learning opportunities are provided for student
members through assessment & analysis, professional research, individualised
programmes and personalised training. As an engineer with a technology research
& development background, | hope | can make use of innovative technology and
my personal network to contribute advice and resources to the Academy, with a
view to enhancing the overall performance of gifted students in Hong Kong and to

promoting science & technology-based gifted education.

Ir Dr LAM Hiu Fung
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the HKAGE (from 28 November 2019)
Awardee of Ten Outstanding Young Persons 2015
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'’S

ver the years, the HKAGE was gradually being recognised as one of the
Omajor players in gifted education worldwide. We started to support our
staff to make presentations on HKAGE research and education achievements
at international conferences starting December 2018, and we have made 9
presentations at the UK, Ireland, the USA, Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan
since then. Our energetic young staff are eager to present their hard works and
discuss with peers worldwide. We are now collaborating with educators from

Denmark, Germany and Israel on several different projects.

With the commencement of the Talent Development Pilot Scheme in 2018,
the HKAGE has also begun to re-structure its student programmes to build up
systematic pathways for student advancements, starting with the area of Robotics
and Artificial Intelligence (Al). To cater for the 21st Century competencies, we also
start to build programmes that infuse humanities/arts with science/technology,
e.g. the Big History and Collective Learning Programme and the ‘Social and
Cultural Studies: Re-constructing Values — World History, Major Thinkers, Artificial
Intelligence and Machine Learning’ programme.

The HKAGE is also a strong promoter of STEM education. In collaboration with the
Hong Kong Young Academy of Sciences, we started the ‘Talk Series on Emerging
Technologies — Science, Opportunities and Challenges, aiming at introducing
to both Hong Kong teachers and students how the future STEM advancement is

going to bring changes to mankind.

With the end of 2019 approaching, it's probably most fitting to say that the HKAGE

is going to work with everyone to make our education in Hong Kong future better.

Professor Ng Tai Kai
Executive Director, the HKAGE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REVIEW | PR RiRE
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FINALE FOR THE HKAGE'S
10th ANNIVERSARY

e
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The Science Education Talk themed ‘Nature's Red Pencil: Writing and Rewriting Genomes’ was
successfully held on 12 July 2019, which comprised twofold of meanings.

On the one hand, it marked the grand finale of the HKAGE's 10th Anniversary event series. On the
other hand, it kick-started a collaboration of Emerging Technologies of talks and workshop series
between The Hong Kong Academy for Gifted Education (HKAGE) and The Hong Kong Young Academy

of Sciences (YASHK). As we know that STEM Education will have a revolutionary impact on the future

society, the Academy would like to make use of this opportunity to plant the seed of science education
in the hearts of our gifted students and teachers.
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Prof Vic Law, President of YASHK, delivers the welco
speech
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Prof Tsui Lap Chee, President of The Hong Kong Aca el
of Sciences, presents the opening remark g
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Dr Stephanie Ma
Chair of the Outreach Committee, YASHK
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Talk Series on Emerging Technologies - Science, Opportunities
HREEMERNZEE - BB (1) :

Natures Red Pencil: -
Wntmg & Rewriting jd 10
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Dr Gao Bo

Assistant Professor of School of
Biomedical Sciences, HKU

SR ELE
BEABERRERRENERER
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Dr Alan Wong

Engineering, HKU
BB L

RENERHIR

Dr Angela Wu

Assistant Professor of Division of Life Science and the
Department of Chemical and Biological Engineering,
HKUST
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FRONTLINE DIVISIONS AND TEAM
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Frontline services of the HKAGE are provided by the Affective

Education Division, the Academic Programme Development

Division, the Advanced Learning Experiences Division, the

Research Division and the Student Services Team.
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Affective Education Division (AED)

BRAB

has been providing affective education
A E Dprogrammes to HKAGE student
members to address their affective needs and support
their social and emotional development. In addition,
the AED also provides parent education programmes
such as the parent support groups, parent-child
groups, biennial parent peer tutoring programme,
parent seminars and workshops. In order to strengthen
the concept of affective education in the regular
classroom, the AED offers outreach teacher seminars on
affective development for gifted learners which were
very popular amongst both primary and secondary
schools. Cross-divisional collaborations within the
Academy have also been initiated to enhance the
affective support in all kinds of student programmes.
Personalised support has been provided through free-
of-charge hotline services which offers support to
students and parents on the special developmental
and affective needs related to giftedness. For in-depth
counselling services, our Clinical Psychologist provides
professional advices to students, and their parents who

are facing challenges in nurturing their gifted children.
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designs and develops diverse types of
AP DDacademic programmes in the forms
of workshops, courses, talks, study projects and overseas
learning programmes in collaboration with both local and
overseas universities, NGOs and professional individuals. The
programmes are specifically designed to cater for the learning
needs of gifted students across different levels from upper
primary to senior secondary with a view to cultivating their
spirit of intellectual exploration and developing their full
potential. Besides, online learning programmes were offered
for enhancing students’ exploration of new knowledge as well
as to nurture their self-directed learning habit. The APDD also
organised territory-wide competitions and related training
programmes to prepare students to participate in international
academic competitions. The APDD keeps exploring new areas
of programme development in order to enrich the current
provision. Programmes in arts (both visual arts and performing
arts), as well as in design, are being planned with relevant

external institutions.

demic Programme Developm
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Advanced Learning Experiences Division (ALED)

ES R BRERS

devises and facilitates individualised,
A LE Dpersonalised and challenging learning
opportunities for gifted students to advance their competence,
pursue goals and aspirations and create positive impacts for
our society and world. These opportunities require a rigorous
selection of students who demonstrate immense interest,
self-initiation and commitment, outstanding readiness and
competence. In collaboration with a wide range of experts,
leaders, scholars, alumni and volunteers of diverse fields and
industries as professional individuals or from local and overseas
institutions, non-government organisations and companies,
the ALED facilitates students to access and be benefited
from diverse learning activities, programmes, resources and

networks.
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gifted T IL RBENEETNAE RETIILTE « B
findings P/ | mmmmsteres  mmmE R EREREE
evaluation  HEERIMSIEEE & I BREAHEINERIE
s, studying T EEREWE - RUBENESENEERRAE
ioninaclear  gm . gEERHEERSEBTREEMEES
g collaboration  w . yipE A EHE RS ENEWRAN TR RS
earches on gifted e e pRIBHABEHZE -

erseas institutions.

search results are shared via
edia and channels so as to increase public
awareness and understanding of gifted education in
Hong Kong and to provide important reference for
future development of gifted education.

Student Services Team (SST)
249 k5

SSTadmits gifted students aged 10 to 18 in EX3 ERFESFEBLU MZRRERFRN T

Hong Kong as HKAGE student members via 10 18 BNASEEBERASHES

the following nomination channels annually: o EZiER
® School Nomination °* BHEREHA
® Self Nomination o LTIEERE
® Nurturing the Gifted Scheme o M FEERRE (HYERREEEEHUFTLHH
® Web-based Learning Courses for Gifted/More Able EEED)

Students (jointly administered by the EDB and the

HKAGE)
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Overall Summary
b R S

To admit students nominated from various schools, a number of
briefing sessions and admissions exercises have been undertaken.
Totally, around 11,800 nominees were recorded, who were from
641 primary and secondary schools. The corresponding school
distribution by region was: 20% from Hong Kong; 38% from
Kowloon and the rest from New Territories. Finally, 1,977 were
admitted. The current cohort of student (as at 31 August 2019)
amounted to some 6,700 . Its distribution by grade level was: 32%
from primary level, 37% junior secondary level and the remaining

31% senior secondary level.

To provide enrichment and acceleration programmes for student
members, over 150 face-to-face plus 22 (self developed) and 5
(EDB developed) web-based learning programmes have been
provided. 4 tests/competitions for the selection of students for
various international competitions have been organised, with nearly
30 related training programmes offered, facilitating students to
excel in their talented areas and obtain a total of 4 gold medals,
20 silver medals and 7 bronze medals in 6 different international
competitions. Besides, 5 overseas learning programmes have been

offered for 29 student members.

To facilitate the affective development of the gifted through
student programmes, 32 affective education programmes have
been developed and delivered to around 2,600 participants to

facilitate their affective development.

1 The scope of the figure covers both preliminary and full members admitted.
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To refine the offering of academic programmes, all professional
staff underwent two rounds of training conducted by trainers from
the Centre for Talented Youth of Johns Hopkins University. They
were further empowered to plan, design, deliver and evaluate gifted
programmes for student members. Besides, suggestions provided
by the STEM Advisory Group helped enhance the varieties of STEM-
related programmes. Around 85 STEM-related programmes have
been offered. Besides, 2 integrated packages in humanities have

been developed with 7 programmes and 3 talks provided.

To offer advanced individualised learning opportunities to
student members, 6 special programmes have been further
developed to advance students’ learning through self-initiated
activities, interdisciplinary learning and one-on-one mastery

apprenticeship experiences.

Through collaborative efforts with scholars from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology, students attending the course ‘Big History and
Sustainability’ worked with students with Artificial Intelligence
training on an interdisciplinary project at a 6-day intensive Summer
Day Camp of Big History and Collective Learning (BHCL). Students

presented and shared their findings in the camp.

25 professionals who are well-established leaders in business,
academic, political and many other professional fields volunteered
to join the Hong Kong Gifted Apprentice Programme (HKGAP) to
share their expertise and experience with our gifted youngsters
through a one-on-one two-year long mentorship programme and

advised them with their individual projects. A0
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To encourage more events and activities initiated by students for
developing talents, 12 programmes in the form of events and activities
initiated by and provided for students were organised. Students were
given the opportunities and facilitations to advance their learning through
self-initiating programmes and a variety of social and peer exchange
activities. Students owned the learning experiences from project ideation
to implementation and evaluation through brainstorming, teamwork and
reflective reviews. Students-initiated events were in a variety of forms such
as social and intellectual talks, viz. Chat Club and Student Forum; speech
and talk, viz. The Voice of Gifted Students; and creative competition, viz.
How a Gifted Mind Starts.

Students were also facilitated to outreach participating in JA Company
Programme, a challenging business simulation competition and attending
Assembly @ MaD Festival 2019, a conference on sustainability and social
innovation, both organised by external organisations. These advanced
learning experiences diversified students’ perspectives and enabled them to
realise the importance of collaboration and innovation in tackling authentic

demand and challenge.

There were 679 participants served by the programmes in total, including
582 students and 97 parents and teachers. In addition, 22 students were
benefited by the other activities, i.e. JA Company Programme and Assembly
@ MabD Festival 2019.

To promote holistic development of student members, a variety of
programmes have been provided. The total number of enrolments
amounted to 18,077"* with total duration of hours being equal
to 3,323"% . The average rating of overall satisfaction for various
programmes by student members was 3.3 (out of 4); while the
average rating of overall satisfaction for HKAGE services by teachers
was 2.8 (out of 4).
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2 The scope of the figure covers all types of deliverables, including online learning programmes for non-screening purpose and web-based learning

3

courses for gifted/more able students (jointly administered by the EDB and the HKAGE).

L FEEMERENTIARE - BFEFEHIARNE LRERERE LEERRE (DB ERREEEEHELHNHLRAEE) -
The scope of the figure covers all types of deliverables; but excludes integrative learning opportunities, special programmes (with extended period of
enrolment), student initiated events, subsidised programmes, collaborations with universities, study project, mentoring scheme and online learning

programmes.
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To engage and mobilise various stakeholders in nurturing the
gifted through a broad-based gifted education support network,
parent education programmes have been developed and delivered
to parents of both members and non-members through a broad-
based gifted education (GE) support network. 33 parent education
programmes have been offered to around 1,151 parents of both
members and non-members. 11 sessions of outreach seminars have
been offered to schools, business and community. From the affective
development perspective, we believe that teachers play a crucial
role in nurturing gifted students during the learning process. The
HKAGE has always attached great importance to the particiaption
of teachers and educational practitioners as partners, and has been
providing sharing with pre-service teachers of The University of
Hong Kong and The Hong Kong Education University (EAUHK) on
affective education. Learning Profiles of our student members were
available online for students, parents’ and teachers’ information as
we saw the parents and teachers as partners in nurturing the gifted
children.

EEBEZINEEBHNE L BAE  BEM
BETRFNEEEEEREAE @ HM
EETZBERRYEFE  HEBEZMN
BEEREZEREE @i 1,151 228
FEENFRRREEBATEHUFTERR -
B BEK - CEMTEERN 11 150
[RREEE - (LIERBRMNABEMS » 23048
EHEEEERED  YMTEEEEERER
HEEEMEENAL  BIuMAREIRE
HENFHE LEE2EAABE  K—H
EEMERETBAEREAHERBNE
HENERIMEBRHENZE - HINBRRE
REHEMAIEEEBRENSE  MLH
BE REMHUEMILEREEREEN
BB  LIESE o

'.‘.I-I‘Ii\ll‘ ol -I‘:l

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS | FE2&%




To assess the impact of various programmes, services, events, etc.,
regular summary statistics reports related to student programmes
and their feedback have been produced, and evaluation and

monitoring activities have been conducted.

To enhance the understanding of the genuine needs of gifted
students, a number of researches have been initiated, including the
completion of a study with EQUHK on ‘Challenges and Opportunities
with Hong Kong Students’ STEM Aspirations: A Preliminary Analysis
with Gifted Student Members' Various research results have been

disseminated via various means.

To promote the HKAGE to the general public and raise their
awareness on the importance of Gifted Education, it is the
goal of the HKAGE to advocate the merit of competency-based
gifted education to the society. To achieve this, the HKAGE has
been striving to broaden its promotional channels and enrich the
presentation of the messages for easy understanding. Over the
year, further to the current social media platform on Facebook
and YouTube, the HKAGE has opened up its own Instagram page
to reach out to different interest of recipients. Below the line,
stakeholder engagement with student groups, parent groups, GE
providers and like-minded organisations has been strengthened
by organising meetings, talks, and public events. Dialogues with
overseas organisations of gifted education have been enhanced
through meetings and conferences. To cater to the needs of all walks
of life, the HKAGE also enhanced the combination of promotional
approaches by producing more videos and graphical works in
addition to the text messages. We hope that the vision and mission
of the HKAGE as well as the rationale of gifted education will be

conveyed to the public in a more effective and efficient way.
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Statistics Summary
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'Get-set-goal: Blueprint of Our Life' Series was a series of

workshops which aimed to introduce the career trends of various
fields in the next 10 years. Students learnt from professionals
about how to prepare for imminent new challenges. It was to
inspire students to think about their future and set realistic goals
to be achieved.

These workshops were delivered by professionals in various
fields, including educators, engineers, museum staff, a clinical
psychologist, humanitarian NGO staff and a registered nurse.

Participating students learnt about the development of those
fields of work, the development of the society under the impact
of technology advancement and the future challenges of different
occupations.

A total of 6 Get-set-goal workshops were conducted. Over 400
students attended.
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Objective

‘w\ ative programme series aimed to equip students  © LLIEAHEOGRIERTI S 1EEE—E B BERM
e tial knowledge in coding and machine learning via RE - RBEEERIZRMRBE T EADL

ralks and courses so that students would understand Al - AR T AERET ARRBE

\ \ e applications and the impact of thls emerging HEAEN R ERANTE
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Objective

for the first time in the ol
in Israel. The Tournament provided a pla
demonstrate their giftedness in the area of their ex

The International Physics Tournament 2019 was held by Weizmann
Institute of Science in Israel.
o iR 5 REER
CRENEE: =
ERZBFTFRRIRE
HRRET BESEFBSGRENIUR
SREMTAEMRENESER * 4
Throughout the training process, the students kept modifying BRE(LRG NSRSt -

5 students were selected to join this tournament. Two phases of
training, last for 6 months, were provided for them who would
apply physics principles to design a safe that could not be easily

unlocked by others for the tournament.

their design taking into consideration comments from the Hong HEBEEH 2019 & 4 BRLIEF
Kong Baptist University trainer and Weizmann Institute mentors. HEMERUWEREERTEES -

Finally, the students went to Israel in April 2019 to showcase their

work to other participants from different countries.
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Objectives

® The Big History and Colle J
further promote and create a Big Histo
Hong Kong.

® The programme this year aimed to engage students to
the role of 'data’ in the progression of humankind and explore ho
humanity should cope with arising challenges of sustainability
and artificial intelligence in the 21st century.

® The BHCL project pioneered a unique learning experience for © [ ARESREEREEEGE, ALSHEITHE .
students by engaging secondary students from two distinctive BH2TER STREELNNBEET

interests and training, i.e. sustainability and artificial intelligence, T AFERREAATIEAEME | A T A TEEE, 19
gi’ﬁkﬁﬂ6 H FF ER RN EE B

to collaborate on an interdisciplinary research project at a 6-day

intensive BHCL Summer Day Camp.

Instructional design was transformed from a didactic to an active
and interdisciplinary project learning approach by shrinking the
class size from 70 to 21 students this year. Students benefited
from a more in-depth study, closer interaction and personalised

feedback from professors for research project development.

The BHCL project is a joint effort of The Hong Kong Unive '

Science and Technology, The Chinese University of

and the HKAGE.
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Objectives

© Develop some friendship

a sense of belonging at the HKAGE.

® Chat Club was one of the examples of students' self-initiatec

events. Proposed by a small group of senior secondary student .

members, 4 sessions of social and intellectual gathering were

organised. 0 4 XRBEEEE 5353

FELPR  SER5IPESR ER
BB R AR - !
RSB B REER IR LL LR BNIR AT

The ALED provided formative advice and administrative supports e £

R4 RS T HMEEL EiEE

iRy B S A N 2 R A IR T B
SHR LI B ERYRERE BRI AR ©

BA R B MTEEN5| AR ERBUERS
valuing the importance of active participation and respectful BENE TSR -
interpersonal communication.

4 different topics ranging from personal interests to social affairs
were devised to engage student participants to express and

exchange their views.

to student organisers.
Student organisers hosted and facilitated session activities.

Their mindset was changed from being passive participants to

Student organisers became reflective in analysing the response
and effectiveness of the event and facilitation and embraced the

ideas of continuous enhancement.
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) school year, the HKAGE received over 11,500

and around 1,800 students registered as members.
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Objectives

¢ parental expectatio
¢ perfectionism
¢ multi-potentiality

In this exercise, we explored any influence/ impact of pa
expectation on other adjustment issues based on survey data by
deploying several psychological measures that are commonly

used in studying human causal judgement.

® 3800 student members completed the questionnaire on the ® 800 B84 2017 FYAX GRS ESE
adjustment issues of giftedness in early 2017. BERERIRERIRIE -

From the psychological measures, it was suspected that high ® EDHESEEIIRAMA - X EM=E
VBB RS IR M R

o

parental expectation might increase the chance of occurrence
of other adjustment issues faced by gifted primary student
members. RERRUTHEECHWEFERHSEE B -
ERAREENETIFEER I RHRER

5—7HE ' EEXESBEHUZFHEEN
RLBEE -

EPRYE R EFE A EAS

1 RETF A
The trick may be finding a healthy balance in the middle and STEBEATHEE

Many parents seemed to expect their children to be perfect, but

this could cause a lot of anxiety and very little satisfaction. On the
other hand, setting the sights too low might not be helpful for
children's self-esteem.

talking with children about their goals for themselves, as learning
to set realistic, achievable goals is essential for having a happy,
successful life.

Reference 2% & H

Chan, D. W. (2003). Adjustment problems and multiple intelligences
among gifted students in Hong Kong: The development of the revised
Student Adjustment Problems Inventory. High Ability Studies, 14, 41-54.

Press meeting held at the end of 2018 to share the research
findings, experiences of students and parents

522018 FEEREE - PEMRRERRBENRK
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

oJ5hE 38R

Operated largely with the support of government funds, the HKAGE upholds

a high standard of corporate governance and maintains reliable and accurate

financial reporting, in order to ensure sustainable development of the HKAGE.

BEEAERYERRNEEESTIRRAIN  F T K FHHEE AILMER

TSRS M r] 52 - FREMSREEAIHENE -

Corporate Governance

A=)

Governance Structure * EREE i i

In 2018/19, the Board of Directors consisted of 12 members, who
were nominated by the Permanent Secretary for Education for
appointment at the general meeting. The Board is the highest
governing body, overseeing the HKAGE's strategic development
and ensuring it operates in compliance with statutory requirements.
The HKAGE turned into a subvented organisation of the Education
Bureau on 1 September 2017 and was registered as a school with
effect from 23 October 2017.

Under the Board, there are 4 functional Committees, namely the
Finance and General Affairs Committee, the Academic Programme
Development Committee, the Affective Education Committee and
the Research Committee. Each Committee is typically chaired by
a functional Director to monitor and give advice on the HKAGE's

operational matters.

During 2018/19, 3 cycles of meetings of the Board and all
Committees were held. The attendance rates for the 3 Board
Meetings were 83%, 58% and 83% respectively. No Director received

any remuneration.

As of 31 August 2019, the HKAGE maintained a total headcount of 53
established posts, with 5 major divisions: The Academic Programme
Development Division, the Advanced Learning Experiences Division,
the Affective Education Division, the Research Division, and the
Corporate Services Division. The governance structure during the
reporting period is in Appendix 2.

*Refer to Appendix 2
* REI8%—
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Risk Management JE\ Pz

BIHIET (HEERLRIEED) (T8

The Paper on Agreed Risk Exposure Profile and Controls (The Paper)
and the Business Continuity Plan (BCP) are the documents to govern
risk management of the HKAGE. During the year, the Paper was
reviewed for a better control of risks governance and management.
The BCP Annual Testing was also completed to ensure it is fit for

purpose.

The HKAGE also regularly reviews and updates its governance
documents such as policies and procedures. In 2018/19, the
Corporate Governance Manual and governance documents
concerning information security and compliance, such as the
Guidelines on Inclement Weather Arrangement (for student
programmes and activities), were revised; and the Non-subvented
Services Policy and Guidelines on Occupational Safety and Health in

Office were established for better governance.

External Collaborations

A major strategic focus of the HKAGE in 2018/19 was to build up
extensive collaboration relationships with universities and other
academic institutions for effective use of combined resources to
develop new or enhanced domains/courses/activities for gifted
students. In order to guide the proper formation of a mutually
beneficial relationship with the collaborators, a new instrument,
namely 'Collaboration Framework Agreement, was developed to
capture the features of collaboration. The common features of these
external collaborations include an agreement of a central theme
to link all courses/activities over the period of collaboration and
the commitment of the collaboration party to pour in expertise
and resources to new frontier of learning experience for the gifted
students. The HKAGE signed a total number of 6 major Collaboration
Framework Agreements in 2018/19.
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Staff Development BITER

As a key player in gifted education, we strive to attract and retain
talents for the continuous growth of the HKAGE. Talents with
training in gifted education being rare in the job market, we place
heavy emphasis on training and development to our staff in this
respect to ensure sustainability of the Academy.

This year, a series of in-house training sessions were conducted to give
staff members insight in the 21st century education and a review of
basic gifted education. Besides, compliance training in Intellectual
Property and Personal Data Protection were organised to equip our
staff with the necessary skills and knowledge to handle their daily
tasks properly. Professional staff were given the opportunities to
actively participate in overseas conferences so as to get international

exposure in gifted education.

Year 2018/19 marked the launch of the pilot scheme for talent
development plan. To equip professional and frontline staff with
necessary skills to meet the future development of the Academy, a
strategic staff development plan was implemented to fill the gaps
between the strengths and the required competence in the Talent
Development Plan of our staff. A 6-month talent development
training project commenced in March 2019 and was completed in
September 2019. A new approach in talent development teaching is

anticipated.
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Pay Structure and Benefits Review

To maintain market competitiveness in retaining talents, the HKAGE
conducted an annual salary review of its staff, with reference to the
market pay trend reports, the HKAGE's financial status and internal
factors. The Board approved the budget for salary increment and
performance incentives for 2018/19. The total remuneration of the

top 3 tiers of management amounted to HK$7.54 million.
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Financial Highlights
B 5 a2

In 2018/19, subventions from the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region's ('HKSAR'), donations from Sir Joseph
Hotung and the Hong Kong Jockey Club ("HKJC') Charities Trust, and
operating income are the major sources of income of the HKAGE to
support its operations for carrying out its principal activities, as well
as the further development of the HKAGE.

The total revenue for the year ended 31 August 2019 is at
HK$42,227,949 (for the year ended 31 August 2018: HK$35,274,544),
in which HK$36,368,891 and HK$4,873,764 represent annual
subventions from the Government of the HKSAR and donations from
the HKJC Charities Trust respectively.

The employee benefit expense totalled HK$30,251,408 (for the year
ended 31 August 2018: HK$24,456,806), accounting for 66 % (for the
year ended 31 August 2018: 68%) of the HKAGE's total expenditure
for the year ended 31 August 2019.

Reserve

According to the Service Agreement dated 14 July 2017, the HKAGE
is allowed to keep a reserve at a level capped at 25% of the actual
spending by the HKAGE from subventions from the Government of
the HKSAR. As at 31 August 2019, the accumulated unused reserve is
HK$5,524,786 (as at 31 August 2018: HK$4,054,347).

=

Lo

INABLE DEVELOPMENT | Ol#%&2% @

£ 201819 F[E » EABEHEBREAIWA
FRREEFBENTHEBUSED « MRE
ITREABRRSHEEAECHIBAREE
WA > USRI EREREFRIFER
B o

BZE2019F8A31 HEFENBERAL
42,227,949 Bt (HZE 2018 F8 A 31 HIE
£ 35274544 F T ) © H 36,368,891 &
TTAEEENITHERFNFEERIER
4,873,764 B AEABESEEREERESR
BI3BFX

HZE2019F8831 BIEFENEERF
B93Z & 30,251,408 &t (#ZE 2018 X8 B
31 H1EA 24,456,806 Byt ) @ HBHREHE
2019 £ 8 A 31 HIEAAER 2 66% (#ZE
2018 £ 8 A 31 HiEA 68%) -

i fis

1R#8 2017 £ 7 B 14 BERETHIBRIEHE ' &
BEEHEENEERBUAEERTER
BEARY 25% B EIRIEAREGH o 5% 2019 & 8
A 31 B BEtREBANGEER 5,524,786 &
JT (542018 & 8 A 31 H/A& 4,054,347 L) ©

)

—



Appendix 1 Bifgfk—

Interim Report on Talent Development Pilot Run (Extract)
(1 September 2018 — 31 August 2019)

Professor Ng Tai Kai
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Background

Since 2009, the main educational goal of the Hong Kong
Academy for Gifted Education (HKAGE) is to provide
enrichment programmes for gifted students in Hong Kong
aged 10-18, as well as providing support to parents and

teachers.

The situation changed in 2018, where after careful discussion
with the Education Bureau (EDB), it was agreed that a new
direction of talent development (TD) should be added for
gifted education in Hong Kong. The goal of gifted education

will move forward from offering enrichment programmes for

gifted students to also prov-ide more systematic programmes

for gifted students that impact directly on their future path of
study or career. A two-year pilot run in TD was thus launched
covering the period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2020.
This report is an interim report on the pilot run and is divided
into two parts: the first part covers the first-year activities of
the TD Pilot run (1/9/2018 - 31/8/2019) and the second part
outlines a long-term TD plan that may extend beyond 2020

for Board members’ discussion.
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Part 1: Report of TD Activities from
1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019

H—284) : 2018 £ 9B 1.8F 2019 &
8H31H [AAEE] T8RS

Overall Summary

The work proposed in the TD Pilot run can be divided into
three parts: (a) student programmes; (b) staff preparation and
administrative support; and (c) evaluation and promotion. We
have concentrated at mainly (a) and (b) in the first year of the
TD Pilot Scheme. :

a) Student programmes

We have provided a range of different programmes under
the TD Pilot Scheme which can be classified into the

following categories:

(i) Artificial intelligence (Al), robotics and computer science

- These include enrichment programmes for primary
students to explore their interests, intermediate
programmes in robotics and Al, and more systematic

programmes in Al and co‘mputer (including linear algebra).

(if)New programmes that infuse STEM with other areas

- These include the Smart 'City programme, the Big
History programmes and the Illness and Brain/Emotion

programme

(iii) Mentorship programme (the Hong Kong Gifted
Apprentice Programme (HKGAP), etc)

- At present individualised student coaching by HKAGE staff
or mentors are provided in the Al Project programme,
mini-Robocon programme, Big History programme and
HKGAP.

The list of programmes being developed is given in Annex 1.
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b) Staff preparation and administrative support

In the transition from “enrichment” to “talent development’,

many of our professional staff have to re-train themselves
to take up the dut,iés of providing academic advice and
affective support for students engaged in TD programmes.
Along this direction, several staff development workshops
have been provided to our professional staff since March
2019, including 4 internal workshops run by our own staff,
and 5 workshops run by an external TD expert company.
More workshops are planned in the year 1 September
2019 to 31 August 2020.

With several student programmes in place we shall pilot
an (in-house) nomination / selection process for HKAGE
student members to enter the TD programmes in Year
2019/20.

c) Evaluation and promotion

Evaluation of student programmes developed under
the TD Pilot run has been carried out following standard
HKAGE practices. It was found that the TD programmes
were generally well reéeived by students despite these
programmes are more demanding than average HKAGE
programmeé (see Annex 2 for the evaluation summary).
Moreover, two groups of students trained by HKAGE
robotics programmes became the champion and 2nd
runner-up in the SciTech Challenge 2019 organised
by Robotics Garage under the Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corpo[étion‘ (HKSTP) (see Annex 3).

Part 2: TD programme planning for 2019/20
and a draft framework for long-term TD
programme development
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This session is divided into two parts: the first part is a draft
framework for long-term TD at the HKAGE. The second part
concerns the TD programme planning in 2019/20, i.e. the
second half of the TD Pilot-run. The two parts are closely
related because some of the planned activities in 2019/20

reflects the vision in the draft long-term TD plan.
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a) Framework for long-term TD at the HKAGE

Crudely speaking, talent development can be divided into .

3-4 stages starting from childhood to young adults:

(i) Initial exposure and development of interests in the given

area
(i) Developing competency in the area
(iii) Becoming an expert in the area

(iv)Achieving eminence (not the immediate goal of the
HKAGE)

Different kinds of experts are needed to coach student
development in different stages of TD. For initial exposure
(stage (i)), we need teachers who can prov'ide accurate
information on the area and inspire the imagination and
interests of students. We also need the support of school
teachers who can spot and nominate the right students into

these enrichment programmes.

To develop students’ compétency in an area (stage (ii)), we
need committed students and experts in the area who are
willing to spend time to work with the students. The teaching
duration may last a few years, covering different levels of
materials or techniques. Students at the age of 17-18 (i.e.
when graduated from secondary school) may acquire a
rather high level of competence in the area if the student is

committed to the study.

Good mentors who are established professionals achieving
eminence in their area of expertise are often needed to lead
students to go deep and become experts in an area (stage
(iii)). The mentorship programme may start at the time when
students show commitment in a field and have already
acquired a good level of competency far beyond his/her
peers. The HKGAP programme at the HKAGE is an initial trial
of mentorship programme along this direction. The mentor-
mentee relationship may continue after students enter

university.
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Overall speaking, to build a successful TD programme in an

area, we need the following supports:

(i) Support from schools in nominating the “right” students
and in providing flexibility for the students to spend time
on their area of interests. At present, these flexibilities
are provided by most schools for students entering

International Olympiad competition trainings.

(ii) Existence of a series of excellent enrichment programmes
that can provide accurate information and inspire the

imagination and interests of students in given areas.

(iii) Existence of a pool of experts that are ready to spend
long time in teaching or coaching students. We need to

provide adequate supports to these experts.

(iv) Existence of a pool of mentors who are established
professionals achieving eminence in an area and are ready

to coach secondary school mentees.

(v) Continued support to all stakeholders involved since
nurturing talents is usually a long journey involving

teachers, students and their parents.

The HKAGE should do the following in the next few years to
build a solid foundation for TD programmes:

(i) Identification of areas where we can locate appropriate

experts to be teachers and mentors of students.

(ii) Set up a good communication network with schools
on nomination and support of students joining TD

programmes.

(iii) Build up a system of identification and coaching students

joining TD programmes.
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(iv) Build up a long-term collaboration relationship with the

teachers and mentors in offering TD programmes.

(v) Establish a team of staff to support students and other .

stakeholders (including teachers, mentors, parents and

schools).

(vi)Identify and locate other needed resources for the
programmes that are outside the present scope of the
HKAGE.

b) TD Plan 2019/20

The 2019/20 TD Plan consists of three parts: (i) continual
development of student programmes in chosen STEM areas;
(ii) launching of a systematic nomination and identification
scheme for students entering TD programmes with
corresponding coaching and affective support from HKAGE
staff; and (iii) evaluation of programmes and research on the
future direction of TD. :

(i) We shall continue to develop/refine our student
programmes in the area of Al, robotics, physics,
mathematics and biological sciences, aiming to build
a systematic pathway of enrichment programmes and
programmes that provide fundamental competéncy
of students in these areas. We shall also continue to
build programmes that infuse humanity and science/

technology (21st Century skills).

(i) We shall develop a nomination and identification scheme
for students entering TD programmes, starting from the
above chosen areas. We shall start to promote the idea of

TD to HKAGE student members in the coming year.

(iii) We shall continue to evaluate the outcomes of TD
programmes and conduct researches / survey on the
feasibility of different areas for TD; starting with finding
out whether there are enough experts who are willing to

contribute to TD of teenagers exist in these areas.
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Appendix 1- Annex 1 Bfigfk— — Bdf 1

Talent Development Programmes Offered by
the HKAGE in 2018-2019

HHEEHT 2L 2018-2019
R TAARE] 3R

1. Primary Robotics Programme: Jumping Sumo

Steeplechase

In these courses, students learned about coding and
robotics using wireless communication. Jumping Sumo
robots were used throughout the course. Students
learned computer concepts such as robot motion control,
computer vision and algorithms without having to master

complicated theories.

. Primary Computer Programming: Blockly & Digital

Game Design

Digital gamers have high expectations for the quality of
digital games. On top of a beautiful display and stunning
effects, it is necessary to have an interesting theme and
an innovative way to play. In this programme, students
first used Blockly to learn about the characteristics of
programming instructions. Later, students learned about

writing codes and built their games.

. Intermediate Course in Artificial Intelligence and
Machine Learning: Machine Learning and Its

Application

Starting with mathematics fundamentals, hands-on
experiments and coding with robots, students walked
through the full path of machine learning by Al. They
learned to programme a robot car (Jumping Sumo), frdm
neural network buildup in C language to data collection,
model training, testing and application, to perform
auto-piloting using machine learning. The course was
wrapped up by introducing Google TensorFlow on the
same project, so that students could experience recent

developments in Al.
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4. Mini-Robocon Training and Competition

Students had hands-on experience on designing
and building robots through design iterations and

programming the robots to communicate with a wireless

controller. They attended three phases of training to

prepare for the Mini-Robocon 2019 competition. 6
students were selected to form 2 teams in the competition

this year.

5. Al Series

(i) Introduction to Computer Programming Using C++

This course was offered through the collaboration with
CUHK. It served as a foundation for other computing

topics and introduced computer programming in C++.

(i) Machine Intelligence - Principles and Applications

This course was offered under the collaboration with
CUHK. It introduces the basics of Al and machine learning.
It also provided basic training on Python programming
and Python implementation of speech recognition and

image recognition systems.

(i) Al Investigation Project

This was a research project in which highly ready students
were selected from the previous courses to work on
authentic projects under the supervision of researchers
from CUHK. Students acquired experience in designing an

application system based on machine learning.

. Algebra Series Programme (basic mathematics for

robotics)

(i) Matrices and Equations

(if) Linear Algebra

This was a series of Algebra programmes offered by
the Department of Mathematics, HKU. The theory: of
linear systems forms a fundamental part of the subject
of linear algebra which is central to almost all areas of
mathematics. The subject finds applications in physics,

engineering, computer science, economics and finance.
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7. The “Co-creating Smart City - Research / Service

Learning Project

This project aimed to encourage secondary school

student members to make contributions to the society by

applying their knowledge and skills in STEM education.
Students were engaged in designing a project on solving
real-life problems in a smart city. To enhance students’
understanding about smart city applications, two talks
were organised in May. After that, students were divided

into two teams to work on a project of their choice.

. Treatments on lllnesses Related to the Brain or

Emotions

Many illnesses such as stroke, Alzheimer's disease and
depression are caused by brain damages. Apart from
conventional medical treatments, some unconventional
recovery programmes like art therapy, miﬁdfulness and
music therapy are being adopted in recent years. This
programme series guided students to study the principles

of various therapies.

. Course on Big History: Pre-Course of Big History and
Collective Learning Summer Day Camp 2019

This 20-hour course provided some basic concepts in Big
History and gave students an opportunify to explore and
think critically about different questions with a Big'History

perspective.

10.Big History and Collective Learning Summer Day
Camp 2019

As a follow-up to “Pre-Course of Big History and Collective
Learning Summer Day Camp 2019” (BHCL/001/C) and
“Intermediate Course in Artificial Intelligence: Machine
Intelligence - Principles and Applications” (TECS2461),
this Summer Day Camp merged the concepts of Big
History and Al to explore how modern development in

technology, especially Al, has impacts on humans.
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11.Hong Kong Gifted Apprentice Programmé (HKGAP) 11. 5B & BeniEst S8l 2018-20

2018-20

HKGAP was officially launched in 2018 and refined as a ; EAEEBMIEST B85 2018 FIENRIED » b
2-year programme. In 2018/19, 25 brofessionals (Masters) Bl E—18AHMERNIER - £ 2018/19
have shown their interest to help nurture young gifted ; FRE G UEE AL ‘( BER) RTH
students and 9 professionals newly joined in the official %gﬂb‘igzﬁxﬂgﬂﬂ(Jﬁ{%%le o SHEITFELED
run. 12 additional pairs of professionals (Masters) and RS LRI o (EEE A BB A WIS

apprentices were matched in the HKGAP 2018-20. 4 12 HETE - RIS AEBETEI8I 2018

20 °
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Evaluation Summary of
TD Programmes 2018-2019

2018-2019 [ A A K& | FHFMHE

A variety of programmes were provided in the first-year pilot
scheme of TD, with the focus being on STEM-related areas.
The total number of capacities offered amounted to 570.
From the overall average of application rates (211.6%), it is
learnt that the programmes were generally well received. As
a number of TD programmes were at advanced level, only
students who could demonstrate motivation and the basic
knowledge about the programmes could be enrolled in the
programmes. Thus, the overall average of enrolment rates
was 88.2%, being slightly lower than that of all deliverables
offered in 2017/18 (91.5%); while the overall average of
completion rates was 88.2%, being close to that of all
deliverables offered in 2017/18.

The quantitative measures of student feedback on Intended
Learning Outcomes and overall satisfaction were pretty high.
The averages for these two aspects were both equal to 3.4
(with full mark = 4.0). It can be concluded that in general,
the Intended Learning Outcomes could be achieved, and
students were satisfied with the programmes offered. The
qualitative feedback received from students also aligned with

this conclusion, as their comments were mostly positive.

PAABELREEE, HITEF  BoiEET
ZIEFFE - T BEA STEM 18R © :EFEREE:E 570
B - Z2BETIGERZER (211.6% ) FARZLLRFR
MEELZRIBEEU - HNET T ATEE
RREARESHEE RERBETAREEE
PG IEMERE A ARG RY B L S I REE - At
BB Y AER B 88.2% © BRIKHL 2017/18 &
EBSA AR REMEREE T (91.5%)
MEBEETIHEM KR 88.2% © IR 2017/18 F£E
BInFE Rl X R RV EREE FEE -

BLFHEEET - PENTAIMB BN RNEIEN
BEEMNFAMMEES  mMENTIFENIE 34
(M5 =4.0) ° BEIFTLUEBHESR - KEMS -
ARIZEEERITRHB BN R - MBEHATEMR
RIRREME - PENELREEHE FRER

—H RAEERXSEZEE -
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HKAGE Student Members' Attainments
in Robotics and Al
THREENTE R E AR A BT &
N T HE S5 58 35000 B uk

1) SciTech Challenge

SciTech Challenge is an annual open pitching competition
with a technology element, giving innovators an
opportunity to pitch their products to potential users
and industries. It is hosted by Robotics Garage under the
Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation
(HKSTP). The competition has two categories, open
entries (age unrestricted) and student entries (secondary

to university).

SciTech Challenge 2019 focused on the topic “Sports Tech”.
The projects could be based around an application, smart
device / equipment, wearables, daily monitoring, or data
platform, as long it is related to sports. Further details can
be find on their website: https://robotics-garage.hkstp.
org/contents/events-and-classes/scitech-challenge-2019/

HKAGE Student Members' Attainments
Champion: Jumpstart
2" Runner up: Sportalyze

Best Presentation Award: Jumpstart

Team "Jumpstart”
Gai Sze Lun (Issac), Chan Wai Kiu (Bridget), Choi Ching Lam

Jumpstart is an application which assists volleyball players
with their training. It aims at providing self-improvement
opportunities with the help of Al technology and posture
correction. By making motion capture comparisons with
professional database, it aims at accurately pinpointing
errors together with gradual recording and tracking,

suited to the needs of the user.

1) SciTech &S

SciTech kB E—EERIFEEHEN
BENWBARMITEHBEEESRERD
FEARLE  AFERBEEARBTH
Robotics Garage E3ff - Lt EDABE (TR
FHe) MBEAE (FREEKRER) REMRE
13

2019 £ SciTech HKEELL "REERIL L AE
7 o 2EIFE AN Z T MEESNERIER
230 - Heeskfn / 8461~ AR - BE
EIEE BT & - ER 2 E MRS

https://robotics-garage.hkstp.org/contents/

events-and-classes/scitech-challenge-2019/

EREEEBHEBRB BRI
BE : Jumpstart
Z& ! Sportalyze

R E/BAESE * Jumpstart
[Jumpstart] B

=R - RIS - SEF

Jumpstart ;& — 7R E B HEERE B B E1TEll #R
FEARER - SEEEATEERMMELE
KBIE o IR EHBCENKE - ZERREXE
IEHERAENE - SARIREEHIBEEITH T -
R ZERE MR HERE - WETTHNERR RAE
B LRERREE -
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Team “Sportalyze”
Mok Tin Yan (Yannis), Song Yiding (Vincent)

Sportalyze is a smart shoe insole which analyses pressure
data from a runner, giving users instant feedbacks to help
them run with attention to certain stressed areas of their

legs and feet.

1) Alin Education: Aspirations and Challenges

* This is a conference organised by the Faculty of
Education, The University of Hong Kong . The purpose
of the conference is to inspire and discuss the emerging
possibilities that Al can bring to enhancing education, as
well as the challenges. The conference would also share
some of the practices being tried out and pioneered
in Hong Kong. The HKAGE has been invited to share
its experience in a parallel sessfon. Led by Prof TK Ng,
Executive Director of the HKAGE, and Prof Tan Lee
from CUHK, 7 HKAGE student members joining our Al
programme or the SciTech Challenge have been invited to

share their experiences in the session.

The 7 student members are:

— Gai Sze Lun, Isaac (S4); YUEN LONG MERCHANTS
ASSOCIATION SECONDARY SCHOOL

— MokTin Yan (S3); PO LEUNG KUK TANG YUK TIEN COLLEGE

— Chan Wai Kiu, Bridget (54); MARYMOUNT SECONDARY
SCHOOL )

— Choi Ching Lam (S5); DIOCESAN GIRLS' SCHOOL

o Wong Chun Lam (S2); G.T. (ELLEN YEUNG) COLLEGE

— Hui Sze Man (S2); LA SALLE COLLEGE

— Kwok Long Fung, Louis (S4); LA SALLE COLLEGE

* Conference cancelled due to recent social situation.
ERATEMEEEEUY ’

1

[Sportalyze] B

)

SRE ~ RINT

Sportalyze 2 — X A] LA TR ER HEHE
R HESE S > BEBRARIZMENRTREE - EHAD
e FIRE i T B RRES RIS R R BRALE -

HEPHATERE : OEEkE

EEEZHEAERBEHE2REM > SERL
BUNRATIETEERIEBBEIFSERM
FTE TR R Pk - W F LR FERIT
BANRIRMHIE - BREHMEFERZPRE
158y - EENERRRAEBUIRMEEHRIK
BERRISHEET 7 UBSMEHEATL
FHERRAZEN SciTech AEVBMBRERHTE
ELENEMMEEEE -

7B ER

EEm (FM) - MBETEABEHE
EXB (=) HMBERREBERHHE
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Appendix 2 : Governance Structure
(1 September 2018 to ’sbe date of this report)
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Board of Directors EE /5

Mr LAM Yun Fu Frederick (Chairman) Up to 27 November 2019
MEELRE (£F) Z2019F 11 B27H
Ms CHAU Suet Fung Dilys

AEE %L

Ms CHI Man Wai Vivian Up to 27 November 2019
MXEat F2019F 11 827H
Prof FUNG Ka Yiu

ERIRHIR

Mr LAU Kwok Leung Gyver Up to 27 November 2019
ZIERESE E2019F 11 B27H
Ms LAU Wai Hing Emily, JP Up to 27 November 2019
2%t - P Z2019F 11 B 27TH
Ms LAU Wai Yee Alice

BREEZ L

Mr LEUNG Shiu Keung

FIes%E

Ms LING Wai Shan Claudia Up to 27 November 2019
EEMZ L F2019F 11 B27H

Dr YEUNG Chung Him Jason
Ms HO Poi Yan Ingrid, JP
fAIE®EZL - JP

Ms CHAN Tsui Wah

BRE2FEZ T+

Ir DrLAM Hiu Fung (Chairman) | From 28 November2019
MeEsEEST - TR (EF) B2019% 11 528 H

DrCHUKaiWing From 28 November2019
KRG EL B2019% 11 A28 H

Mr YUEN Tat Man Sidney From 28 November 2019

RENSEE B2019% 11 A28 H
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Finance and General Affairs Committee BAi7E R EIEEE =

Ms CHAU Suet Fung Dilys (Chairman)
BERZE (X&)

Ms CHI Man Wai Vivian Up to 5 December 2019

MX Bt E2019%12HA5H

MrLAMYunFuFrederick Upto5December2019
WHE LS E2019%12H5H

MsLING Wai Shan Claudia | Upto5December2019
EEMZ L F£2019%12H5H

MrYUENTatManSidney
RENSTE

Principal Education Officer (Curriculum Development) 2, Education Bureau

HEREEHAEEE (FERE) 2

Chief Treasury Accountant (Finance), Education Bureau

HERBESERTED (BIED)

Ir Dr LAM Hiu Fung From 6 December 2019
MEESEE L - Ti2AM H2019F12H6H
MrWONGHinWing Simon | From 6 December2019
HRERSEE H2019F12H6H

Mr LAU Kwok Leung Gyver (Chairman) Up to 5 December 2019
BIEREE (£F) E2019F12H5H
Ms CHEUNG Lai Chu Up to 5 December 2019
REETAZ £ E2019F12H5H
Prof FUNG Ka Yiu

TR IRHUR

Mr LAM Yun Fu Frederick Up to 5 December 2019
HHEELE E2019F12H5H
Ms LOK Mei Kwan Tracy

BEExL

Dr YEUNG Chung Him Jason

B s
ook oa

Deputy Secretary (Education) 5
HEREMER ()

Dr CHU Kai Wing (Chairman) From 6 December 2019
KR ELE (EF) H2019F12H6H
Ms LEUNG Yuk Wah From 6 December 2019
PERELL BH2019%12HA6H
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Affective Education Committee |

Ms CHI Man Wai Vivian (Chairman) Up to 5 December 2019
MELE (£F) F2019F12H5H
Ms LAM Kit Ying Juliana Up to 5 December 2019
WRELZ+ £2019F12H5H
Mr LAM Yun Fu Frederick Up to 5 December 2019
WHELE F£2019%12H5H
Ms LAU Wai Yee Alice

BRRE L L

Dr TAM Woon Ling Cindy Up to 5 December 2019
FEjutegin F£2019%12HA5H

Chief Curriculum Development Officer (Gifted Education), Education Bureau

HERBRERREE (BBHE)

Senior Specialist (Educational Psychology Service/Hong Kong), Education Bureau

HERESHRERTHE L (HBFLERSE/EE)

Mr LEUNG Shiu Keung (Chairman) From 6 December 2019
PIksaxeE (£F) H2019%F12H6H
Dr CHU Kai Wing From 6 December 2019
KRB E L H2019F12H6H
Mr WONG Chi Wah Daniel From 6 December 2019
EEESYE B2019%12H86H
Dr YIP Chi Sio From 6 December 2019
ESkEL B2019%12H6H

Research Committee IEEE T

Prof FUNG Ka Yiu (Chairman)
BEIBRR (EF)

Dr HUI Na Na Anna
S E

Mr LAM Yun Fu Frederick Up to 5 December 2019
WHELE E£2019F12H5H

Mr LEUNG Shiu Keung
PIksaE

Principal Assistant Secretary (Curriculum Development), Education Bureau

HERERENER (RERRE)

Auditors % ZEM Company Secretary A BfhE

Patrick Wong C.P.A Limited WLLK Secretaries Limited
HREE BRI BTARAR BE (FE) EBRAR
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY

FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL) -

DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

(All amounts in Hong Kong Dollars unless otherwise stated)
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RECTORS' REPORT

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of The Hong
Kong Academy for Gifted Education Limited (the “Academy”)
for the year ended 31 August 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Academy are to explore and
develop the potential of students with exceptional talent and
to promote the concepts and practices of gifted education
within the broad framework of the Government of tHe
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region’s (“HKSAR") gifted

education policy.

RESULTS

The financial performance of the Academy for the year ended
31 August 2019 and its financial position at that date areset

out in the financial statements on pages 73 to 105.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Academy during the period beginning with
the end of the financial year and ending on the date of this report

are as follow:-

Chan Tsui Wah

Chau Suet Fung Dilys
Chi Man Wai Vivian
Chu Kai Wing

Fung KaYiu

(Resigned on 27 November 2019)
(Appointed on 28 November 2019)

Ho Poi Yan Ingrid :
Appointed on 28 November 2019)

Lam Hiu Fung (

Lam Yun Fu Frederick (Resigned on 27 November 2019)
Lau Kwok Leung (Resigned on 27 November 2019)
Lau Wai Hing Emily (Resigned on 27 November 2019)

Lau Wai Yee Alice

Leung Shiu Keung :

Ling Wai Shan Claudia Christian (Resigned on 27 November 2019)
Yeung Chung Him

Yuen Tat Man Sidney (Appointed on 28 November 2019)

All directors retire in accordance with Article 25 of the Academy'’s
Articles of Association but, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

appointment as determined at the Annual General Meeting.

The Academy received no notice in writing from resigned
directors specifying that their resignation was due to reason

relating to the affairs of the Academy.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors

of the Academy is currently in force and was in force throughout

the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, |
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangement and contracts of significance
to which the Academy was a party and in which a director
of the Academy had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the activities of the

Academy were entered into or existed during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Hong Kong Academy for Gifted Education Limited is a
company limited by guarantee without the establishment of
a share capital on 27 March 2007, and it has been registered
as a charitable institution within the meaning of section 88 of
the Inland Revenue Ordinance in Hong Kong on 20 July 2007.
Moreover, it is also a registered school under the Education
Ordinances (Others) starting from 23 October 2017.

From September 2017 onwards, the Academy has become a
subvented organisation of the Education Bureau. Apart from
this, the Academy also received a funding of $21 million from
The Hong Kong Jockey Club ("HKJC") Charities Trust from
December 2017 for running a three-year Affective Education
programme (Jockey Club “Gifted in Bloom - Harmony in
Heart & Mind” Programme) to cater for the affective needs of
gifted students, and to develop a comprehensive framework
of Affective Education training programmes for parents and

educators.

The Academy offers unique enrichment programmes for
the whole person development of gifted students. Its
mission is to secure appropriate learning and development
opportunities for gifted students, aged 10 to 18 years, to
enable them to realise their potential in a wide range of
learning domains, including academic and non-academic
areas, and to cater for the social and emotional needs of
gifted students as well as their sense of commitment to the
local community. Most of its programmes are provided free-

of—chérge.
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Since its establishment, the Academy has been broviding

professional development programmes and outreach

services for teachers and education professionals in schools

and tertiary institutions. Over 20,000 teachers have benefited
from the teacher professional training programmes since
2008. The Academy also provides cutting edge enrichment
programmes for the development of its gifted student
members. At present, the Academy is striving for cross-
institutional collaboration in the gifted education landscape
in both Hong Kong and overseas and to investigate the
possibility of developing new programmes in STEM area
to enable its gifted student members to cope with future

challenges.

AUDITOR

The auditor, Patrick Wong C.P.A. Limited, Chartered
Accountants, Certified Public Accountants (Practising), who
retire at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lam Hiu Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 December 2019
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EPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
E HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATI

ORPORATED IN HONG KONG AS A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE ANI
WVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of The Hong Kong Academy for Gifted Education Limited (the “Academy”)
set out on pages 73 to 105, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 August 2019, and the
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Academy as at 31
August 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(“HKICPA”") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in

the directors’ report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

“



RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from

material rﬁisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Academy’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Academy’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR-THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purposes. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Academy'’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.



+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Academy’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Academy to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

PATRICK WONG C.PA. LIMITED
RALI& G =t 0 F A5 PR (RN F)
Certified Public Accountants

%\Uz /A)@ﬁ oAy U ‘

2100, R L E G

LAU YUK MING HAROLD

FCPA (Practising), MSCA

Certified Public Accountant (Practising), Hong Kong
Practising Certificate Number: P05468

Hong Kong,
Ref : T504/A/PW/HL/1252/1345/486
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{E HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMIT
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

STATEMENT?OF PROFIT OR LOSS
YEAR ENDED 31:AUGUST 2019

Notes 2019 2018

S S_
Revenue

Programme income ; 342,584 248,327
Government subvention income 36,368,891 31,950,053

Donation from the Hong Kong Jockey Club ("HKJC") ,
Charities Trust 4.873,764 1,542,070
Other revenue ' 6 642,710 1,534,094
42,227,949 35,274,544
Programme costs (8,390,176) (6,041,284)
Employee benefit expenses : 7 (30,251,408) (24,456,806)
Administrative expenses (7,066,943) (5,362,459)
Deficit for the year , 8 (3,480,578) (586,005)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

2019 2018
S 5
Deficit for the year : ’ (3,480,578) (586,005)
Other comprehensive income/(expenses)
for the year, net of tax that may be reclassified
subsequently to‘ profit or loss:
Net fair value gain on available-for-sale
financial assets during the year - 188,383
Réclassiﬁcation adjustments relating to
available-for-sale financial assets
disposed of in the year - (1,529,313)
Total comprehensive deficit for the year : (3,480,578) (1,926,935)

The notes on pages 81 to 105 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditor's Report - Pages 67 to 72
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E HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMIT
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

STATEMENT; OF FINANCIAL POSITION

: S S
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment 11 2,711,352 2,408,917
Non-current financial assets 12 2,079,166 4,139,776.
4,790,518 6,548,693
Current assets
Accounts receivable : 1,142,047 125,953
Deposits and prepayments : 1,260,309 1,930,756
Other receivables : 5 1
Cash and cash equivalents 18 37965174 34,001,368
40,367,535 36,058,078
Deduct:-
Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals 4,398,755 5,194,472
Revenue received in advance 800 19,300
Provisions : , 774,761 674,298
Deferred income . 14 33,107,458 27,256,770
38,281,774 33,144,840
Net current assets : : ; 2,085,761 2,913,238
Total assets less current liabilities ; : 6,876,279 9,461,931
Deduct:-
Non-current liability
Provision - 1,565,343 670,417
Net assets . 5,310,936 8,791,514
Funds
General fund : 15 5,310,936 6,079,800
Fa>ir value reserve % - 27 1714
5,310,936 8,791,514
APPROVED BY:-
Lam Hiu Fung Chau Suet Fung, Dilys
Director Director

The notes on pages 81 to 105 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditor’s Report - Pages 67 to 72
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E HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMIT
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

General Fair value
fund reserve Total
$ $ S
Balance at 1 September 2017 6,665,805 4,052,644 10,718,449
Deficit for the year l (586,005) - (586,005)
Net fair value gain on available-for-sale
financial assets during the year - 188,383 - 188,383
Reclassification adjustm‘ents relating to
available-for-sale financial assets
disposed of in the year - (1,529,313) (1,529,313)
Total comprehensive deficit for the year (586,005) (1,340,930) (1,926,935)
Balance at 31 August 2018 6,079,800 2741214 8,791,514
Balance at 1 September 2018 _ 6,079,800 2,711,714 8,791,514
Impact of initial application of HKFRS 9 2,711,714 (2,711,714) -
Balance at 1 September 261 8 (Restated) 8,791,514 : - 8,791,514
Total comprehensive deficit for the year (3,480,578) : - (3,480,578)
Balance at 31 August 2019 : 5,310,936 - 5,310,936

The notes on pages 81 to 105 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditor's Report - Pages 67 to 72
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E HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITE
'COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Notes . 2019 2018
S S
Operating activities
Deficit for the year (3,480,578) (586,005)
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation 918,750 368,038
- Bank interest income (14,219) (3,647)
- Loss on sale of plant and equipment 4,864 .
- Gain on sale of available-for-sale financial assets - (1,529,313)
- Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (624,587) -
- Fair value loss of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 485,197 =
Operating deficit before working capital changes. (2,710,573) (1,750,927)
Increase in accounts receivable (1,016,094) (31,806)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and prepayments 670,447 (800,116)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals (795,717) 955,172
(Decrease)/increase in revenue received in advance (18,500) 18,600
Increase in provision : 995,389 4321
Increase in deferred income 5,850,688 5,654,130
Net cash generated from opérating activities 2,975,640 4,049,374
Investing activities
Bank interest received _ 14,215 3,648
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets - 5,300,000
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,200,000 -
Purchase of plant and equipment (1,448,299) (2,040,411)
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 222,250 =
Net cash generated from investing activities 988,166 3,263,237
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,963,806 7312611
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 34,001,368 26,688,757
13) 37,965,174 34,001,368

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The notes on pages 81 to 105 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditor's Report - Pages 67 to 72
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED
EDUCATION LIMITED

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 AUGUST 2019

BEEERBYUBTEREBRLA
(SRR RRERAR)

RAFS R
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Hong Kong Academy for Gifted Education Limited
(the “Academy”) was incorporated under the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance as a non-profit making company
limited by guarantee and not having a share capital. The
address of its registered office and principal place of business

are Sha Kok Estate, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Academy are to explore and
develop the potential of students with exceptional talent and
to promote the concepts and practices of gifted education
within the broad framework of the Government of the

HKSAR’s gifted education policy.

2. STATEMENT OF CbMPLIANCE WITH
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS '

The Academy'’s financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applic.able Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which includes all
applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hdng
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and

the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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A summary of significant accounting policies adoptéd by the

Academy is set out in note 3.

In the year ended 31 Ahgust 2019, the Academy has initially -

applied the new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
that are first effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 September 2018. A summary of the changes in
accounting policies resulting from the Academy’s application
of these HKFRSs is set out in note 4.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in preparing the financial
statements is historical cost, except for certain non-current

financial assets, which are stated at fair value.

(b)Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if

any, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

as follows:-

Furniture 20%
Office equipment 2 20%
Computer equipment 33%
Leasehold improvements 20%

Plant and equipment which have a cost less than $1,000 are

expensed to the statement of profit or loss on acquisition.

The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed

at the end of each reporting period.
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The Academy assesses at the end of each reportiﬁg period

whether there is any indication that any items of plant and
equipment may be impaired and that an impairment loss
recognised in prior periods for an item may have decreased.
If any such indication exists, the Academy estimates the
recoverable amount of the item. An impairment loss, being
the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, or a
reversal of impairment loss, is recognised immediately in the

statement of profit or loss.

Gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of
plant and equipment is included in the statement of profit or
loss when the item is derecognised and is determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the

carrying amount of the item.

(c) Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the

statement of financial position when the Academy becomes

a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Academy transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Academy neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the assets’ carrying amount and the sum of the consideration

received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the

financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is

recognised in profit or loss.
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(d)Financial assets under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 September 2018
Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the burchase or sale of an asset is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and
are initially measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs except in the case of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Financial assets of the Academy are classified under the

following categories:

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including accounts and othe'r receivables)
are classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual

cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less loss

allowances for expected credit losses.

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss '
Financial assets are classified under this category if they do not
meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost and the
conditions of debt financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Academy designates an
equity financial asset that is not held for trading as at fair value

through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising from
changes in fair values recognised in profit or loss. Interest

income and dividend income are recognised in profit or loss.
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(e)Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Academy recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit
losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the

respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Academy measures
the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount
equal to the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of that financial
instrument (“lifetime expected credit losses”) for accounts
receivable, or if the credit risk on that financial instrument has

increased significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than accounts receivable) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Academy
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit
losses that represents the expected credit losses that result
from default events on that financial instrument that are

possible within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an

impairment gain or loss.

(f) Investments under HKAS 39 prior to
1 September 2018

Investments are recognised and derecognised on the trade
date when the Academy commits itself to purchase or sell
an asset and are initially measured at fair value plus, in the
case of investments other than trading securities, transaction
costs. At the end of each reporting period, the Academy
assesses whether there is any objective evidence that an
investment or group of investments is impaired. Investments
are further categorised into the following classifications for

the measurement after initial recognition.
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(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments other than those held for trading and held to
maturity are classified as available-for-sale financial assets
and are stated in the statement of financial position at fair
value. Gain or loss on the fair value changes of available-for-
sale financial assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value reserve, except for
impairment losses and, in the case of monetary items such as
debt securities, foreign exchange gains and losses which are

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Where the available-for-sale financial assets are interest-
bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest

method is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are derecognised,
the difference between net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount, and the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in other comprehensive income and retained
in the fair value reserve, are reclassified from fair value
reserve to the statement of profit or loss as a reclassification

adjustment.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale
financial asset has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is removed from fair value
reserve and recognised in the statement of profit or loss even

though the financial asset has not been derecognised.

The amount of the cumulative loss that is removed from fair
value reserve and recognised in other comprehensive income
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in the statement of profit or
loss for an investment in an equity instrument classified as
available-for-sale are not reversed through the statement of
profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in the statement
of profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed, with the
amount of the reversal recognised in the statement of profit

or loss.
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(ii) Fair value measurements

Fair value of an investment on initial recognition is normally
the transaction price, unless it is estimated by using a
valuation technique when part of the consideration given or

received is for something other than the investments.

After initial recognition, the fair value of an investment
quoted in an active market is based on the current bid price
and, for investments not quoted in an active market, the
Academy establishes the fair value of such investment by

using a valuation technique.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length
market transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same and discounted cash flow analysis,
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as

possible on entity-specific inputs.

(g)Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and at bank and demand
deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk

of changes in value.

(h)Other payables

Other payables are initially measured at fair value and,
after initial recognition, at amortised cost, except for short-
term payables with no stated interest rate and the effect of
discounting being immaterial, that are measured at their

original invoice amount.

(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Academy has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.
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Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the o'bligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(j) Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave and gratuity entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and gratuity are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and
gratuity as a result of services rendered by employees up

to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave

are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Retirement benefit costs

The Academy has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance. The Academy
contributes 5% of the relevant income of staff members
under the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Academy, in funds
under the control of trustees. Payments to the MPF

Scheme are charged as an expense as they fall due.

(k) Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars, which are also the Academy’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruiing at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses

are recognised in profit or loss.
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Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in

terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair

value was measured.

(I) Revenue recognition

The Academy recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied by transferring a promised service
(i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when
(or as) the customer obtains control of that asset. When
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, the Academy
recognises as revenue the amount of the transaction price
(which excludes estimates of variable consideration that are
constrained in accordance with HKFRS 15) that is allocated to

that performance obligation, as follows:

Programme income is recognised when the agreed services

have been provided.
Income from other sources:

(i) Subventions/donations for specific purposes

Subventions/donations for specific purposes are
recognised when there is a reasonable assurance that the
Academy will comply with the conditions attaching to it

and that the subventions will be received.

Subventions/donations relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they

are intended to compensate.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest

method.
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(m) Related parties

a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Academy if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Academy;
(i) has significant influence over the Academy; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Academy.

b) An entity is related to the Academy if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a); or

(i) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(iii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Academy.

4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Academy has initially applied the new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are first
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after

1 September 2018, including :-

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance

consideration

Except as described below, the application of the new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Academy'’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these financial statements.
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HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments: recognition
and measurement. It sets out the requirements for
recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities

and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.

The Academy has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items
that existed at 1 September 2018 in accordance with the
transition requirements. The Academy has recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening equity at 1 September 2018. Therefore,
comparative information continues to be reported under
HKAS 39.

The following table summarises the impact of transition
to HKFRS 9 in the general fund and fair value reserve at 1
September 2018:-

$
Increase in general fund 2,711,714
Decrease in fair value reserve (2,711,714)

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal
classification categories: measured at amortised cost, at
fair value through other comprehensive income and at
fair value through profit or loss. These supersede HKAS
39's categories of held-to-maturity investments, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. The
classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on the
business model under which the financial asset is managed

and its contractual cash flow characteristics.
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The following table shows the original measurement

categories for each class of the Academy’s financial assets
under HKAS 39 and reconciles the carrying amounts of those

financial assets determined in accordance with HKAS 39 to

TRITREEBGERE 30 HABHE
A REEMNYRIBER  RERBEEE
BEEBE 3 BRETNRE SRS ERAE
HIRIE S BRATS IR L £0I8 o BT EEST

those determined in accordance with HKFRS 9:- IR o
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying amount carrying amount
at31/08/2018 Reclassification  at 01/09/2018
NF—\F BB RIZF—/\FE
NA=+—H NA—H
REEEES RIEE BB
£S5 39 57 HwEEZERIZE 9 5
EEMNREE EEMNREE
S B S B S B
Financial assets at amortised cost 1REtHA AT BRI EMEE
Accounts and other receivables JE AT K% EL4th FE L R 18 125,954 . 125,954
Deposits RE 44,285 - 44,285
Cash and cash equivalents HENIRSEEY) 34,001,368 . 34,001,368
34,171,607 2 34,171,607
Financial assets at fair value RARBEST AEBLER
through profit orloss SREE
Unit Trust Funds, EEES,
unlisted and at fair value FELEmERARER - 4,139,776 4,139,776
Financial assets classified as RIBEES TR 39 5%
available-for-sale : DR
under HKAS 39 . THHEREcREE
Unit Trust Funds, Eai :
unlisted and at fair value 4,139,776 (4,139,776) -

FFEmREARER




HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with
the expected credit loss (“ECL") model. The ECL model

requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk associated

with a financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs earlier

than under the “incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Academy applies the new ECL model to the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including accounts and
other receivables, deposits and cash and bank balances) with
no material impact on the Academy’s financial performance

and position.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which
covered revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering
of services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which

specified the accounting for construction contracts.

The Academy has elected to use the cumulative effect
transition method and has recognised the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance
of equity at 1 September 2018. Therefore, comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be
reported under HKASs 11 and 18. As allowed by HKFRS 15,
the Academy has applied the new requirements only to

contracts that were not completed before 1 September 2018.

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining when to recognise revenue and how much
revenue to be recognised through a 5-step approach: (i)
identify the contract(s) with customer; (ii) identify separate
performance obligations in the contract; (iii) determine the
transaction price; (iv) allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations; and (v) recognise revenue when
a performance obligation is satisfied. The core principle is
that the Academy should recognise revenue when control of

goods or services transfers to a customer.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows

arising from contracts with customers.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT :

The Academy’s management makes assumptions, estimates

and judgements in the process of applying the Academy’s .

accounting policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income
and expenses in the financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs. The assumptions, estimates
and judgements are based on historical experience and
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. While the management review their
judgements, estimates and assumptions continuously, the

actual results will seldom be equal to the estimates.

Certain key assumptions and risk factors in respect of the
financial risk management are set out in note 17. There is
no other key source of estimation uncertainty that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year.

6. OTHER REVENUE Hfthif A
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2019 2018
S B S B
Bank interest income SRITH EWA 14219 3,647
Gain on sale of available-for-sale financial assets &Rt HESRE E WS - 1,529,313

Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value HERANEEE ABRN
through profit or loss SREEW 624,587 -
Sundry income HMIEUT A 3,904 1,134
642,710 1,534,094

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE {2&fafillfsz

‘ 2019 2018
S Bk S Bk
Salaries and allowance e OE S 28,109,725 22,698,907
Pension scheme contributions BEEST IR 924,964 748,124
Provisions for annual leave and gratuity BT HRBREA RN B R 1,216,719 1,009,775
30,251,408 24,456,806




8. DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR RNFEE&18 :
Deficit for the year is arrived at after charging:- Kﬁfﬁ@ﬁ}ﬁﬂ?ﬂlﬁ%l—iT%E -

2019 2018

S A S B

Auditors' remuneration G 42,000 40,000

Depreciation e 918,750 368,038

Employee benefit expense (note 7) EBERAFEX (7 30,251,408 24,456,806
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value  IRADEEFTAEZRZWN

through profit or loss SREEANEESE 485,197
Loss on sale of plant and equipment HEME ML EEE 4,864 5

9. INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Academy has obtained exemption
status under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance for

taxation purposes.

10. EMOLUMENTS AND OTHER MATTERS
RELATING TO DIRECTORS

(@) There were no directors’ emoluments pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation for the year
(2018: nil).

There were no payments made or benefit provided in
respect of the termination of the service of directors,
whether in the capacity of directors or in any other

capacity while directors.

(b) There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate and

other connected entities.
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(c) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

The directors were of the opinion that no transactions,

arrangement or contracts of significance in relation

to the Academy’s business to which the Academy was
a party and in which a director of the Academy had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year and
the previous year.

(d) Guarantees to banks for loans granted to directors of
the Academy

The Academy has not paid or incurred any liability for
the purpose of fulfilling the guarantee or discharging
the security given to banks for loans granted to the

directors during the year and the previous year.

(e) There were no consideration provided to or
receivable by third parties for making available the
services of a person as directors or in any other capacity
~ while directors.
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11. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT &K%

Office  Computer Leasehold
Furniture  equipment equipment improvements Total
RE MATRE BIERE =B P
S i S B SAsME SUBME S
Cost: YA
At 1 September 2017 Rz e 424,323 898,262 4,560,997 1,269,392 7,152,974
Additions by 232,634 107311 259,003 1,441,463 2040411
At 31 August 2018 RIZS—N\ENB=1+—H 656957 1005573 4820000 2,710,855 9,193,385
Accumulated depreciation: 2ETHTE :
At 1 September 2017 SRS s SR s 376,719 840,249 4,081,987 1,117,475 6416430
Charge fortheyear FRITE ; 26,393 23,250 271,091 47304 368,038
At 31 August 2018 RZZF—N\FENA=1T—"H 403112 863,499 4,353,078 1,164,779 6,784,468
Net book value: BRENFE -
At 31 August 2018 RS- NENB=+—0 253845 142074 466,922 1546076 2408917
Cost: A -
At 1 September 2018 n_= - AFEH—H 656,957 1,005573 4,820,000 2,710,855 9,193,385
Additions wE 87,854 110,806 1,249,639 - 1,448,299
Disposals =8 (3,496) (24,050) - (227,750)  (255,296)
At 31 August 2019 - RIZS—AENB=1+—H 741315 1092329 6,069,639 2,483,105 10,386,388
Accumulated depreciation: BEHITE :
At 1 September 2018 RS CF R 403,112 863499 4,353,078 1,164,779 6,784,468
Charge for the year FERITE 60,843 40,172 528634 289,101 918,750
Written back on disposal ~ ZEE 0] (3,496) (24,050) - (636)  (28,182)
At 31 August 2019 . RZBE-AENB=t+—H 460459 879,621 4,881,712 1453244 7675036
Net book value: BRMESE *
At 31 August 2019 RIZF—NENA=1+—H 280856 212,708 1,187,927 1,029,861 2,711,352




12. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS FEREhertEE

2019 2018
S B S B
Available-for-sale financial assets AftHESREE :
- Unit Trust Funds, unlisted and at fair value -EZFEES, FEmMRARER - 4,139,776
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss IZAREBEFTABTHNESHEE
- Unit Trust Funds, unlisted and at fair value -EEES, FLHABRAREE 2079166 -
2,079,166 4,139,776
13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IRERIBEEEY
2019 2018
S A S A
Cash on hand . H& 3,135 3,838
Deposits with banks IRITER 37,962,039 33,997,530
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of MBERARIIBERERZ
financial position and statement of cash flows NS KIS EEBY) 37,965,174 34,001,368




14. DEFERRED INCOME RSEUR A

Subvention
from the Donations
Government of from HKJC
the HKSAR  Charities Trust Total
BB BAAERS
TR ZEEEER
BTEBRD B #aEn
B8 S 5 e
At 1 September 2017 mos crtb L H 21,602,640 - 21,602,640
Donations received BB - 2,040,895 2,040,895
Subvention received for 2017/18 BEW _—F—+ /
B N\FEEY 14,401,760 - 14,401,760
Subvention received in advance FAW _F—/\ /
for 2018/19 B NEEEY 22,703,598 - 22,703,598
Amount recognised in statement B FRHER 2 BZE
of profit or loss (31,950,053) (1,542,070) (33,492,123)
At 31 August 2018 YRR o A% VAN Sy st
and 1 September 2018 T e R E e 26,757,945 498,825 27,256,770
Donations received [SAEEA - 3,295,996 3,295,996
Subvention received for 2018/19 EW_=F—/\ /
_E-NEEEY 15,135,732 : 15,135,732
Subvention received in advance TEW _F—H./ ’
for 2019/20 B FFEERY 27,582,672 - 27,582,672
Amount recognised in statement P88 RIER BEE
of profit or loss (36,368,891) (4,873,764) (41,242,655)
Receivables from HKJC R EBSBEESREST
Charities Trust (Note) EEEm (MEE) - 1,078,943 1,078,943
At 31 August 2019 R e e AN B e pl g 33,107,458 - 33,107,458
Note:The receivables from HKJC Charities Trust of $1,078,943 (2018 : nil) FfF&E : Eﬂ&l@iﬁg%‘éﬁéfﬁfgﬁ? 7% 1,078,943

is included in accounts receivable in the statement of financial position.

15. GENERAL FUND —#&E %

The balance of the fund represents the unutilised amounts
of donation from Sir Joseph Hotung and one-off grant from
Education Bureau which were recorded as income of the
Academy at the time of receipt in the previous years and
are mainly used for supporting non-recurring expenditure
of the Academy from time to time which are recorded as

expenditure of the Academy as incurred.

(Z2—N\F ) CEERFMBILR ZBRFIRZ
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16. CAPITAL DISCLOSURE

Capital comprises general fund and fair value reserve on the

statement of financial position. The Academy’s objective

when managing funds’is to safeguard its ability to continue .

as a going concern in order to carry out its principal activities.

The Academy managés capital by regularly monitoring its
current and expected liquidity requirements rather than

using debt/equity ratio analyses.

The Academy is a company limited by guarantee without
share capital. During the year, the Academy’s operation is
mainly financed by subventions from the Government of
the HKSAR, donations from the HKJC Charities Trust and Sir
Joseph Hotung, and income generated from the non-current

financial assets.

The Academy is not subject to either internally or externally

imposed capital requirements.

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS £ T8

16 AIRIHE

BEAREIBIRARFH—EERARE
e - X2 EEREEES  LUREH
RS E RETTHERET -

RER305EEE HAB A E B RTAOM FRERRIRED
BEEFRKRHEEAETHE  MTBERGEF/
BRAEER AT

BN E—BERAINEREBRAR - 1KEF
A ABRGETIREEBE B HTHELE
BRREEAREEREETESRMAE
& TiRF R IE BN £ ME ER R AR

i -

RBHEARBNERHINERRERK -

The Academy has classified its financial assets in the following categories:-

ARG HEMEENBLUTHER -

Financial assets

at fair value

Financial assets through
at amortised cost profit or loss Total

REERAR BARER

FIERHY  FHABRH
TREE TREE P
S A S B S B

2019 —E—hEF

Non-current financial assets EREBEHEE - 2,079,166 2,079,166
Accounts receivable W ERIE 1,142,047 - 1,142,047
Deposits b 357461 < 357461
Other receivables H bR 5 : 5
Cash and cash equivalents BENRBEESEEY 37,965,174 = 37,965,174
39,464,687 2,079,166 41,543,853




Available-

Loans and for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
RN A E
FEMFRIA TREE HRE
S L S AL S &
2018 —EN\F
Non-current financial assets JERESEHEE - 4,139,776 4,139,776
Accounts receivable FEW RIS 125,953 - 125,953
Deposits ®we 44,285 - 44,285
Other receivables H{th FEIKGRIE 1 s 1
Cash and cash equivalents WS RIS EEY) 34,001,368 - 34,001,368
34,171,607 4,139,776 38,311,383
The Academy has classified its financial liabilities in the following categories:-
ABGEHSRMBES B TER - 2019 2018
S I S I
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1ZESE K AT EN SR AEE
Other payables HAEFRIR 1,701,298 3927314

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 August 2019 and 2018.

The Academy is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market
risk arising in the normal course of its business and financial
instruments. The Academy’s risk management objectives,
policies and processes mainly focus on minimising the potential
adverse effects of these risks on its financial performance and

position by closely monitoring the individual exposure.

(a)Credit risk

The Academy is exposed to credit risk on financial assets, mainly
attributable to deposits with banks and the investments in Unit
Trust Funds. Given the credit ratings of the fund managers,
management does not expect them to fail to meet their
obligations. On the other hand, fund managers monitor the
credit risks with reference to their respective portfolio mandates
which have guidelines on credit ratings of financial instruments
and the maximum exposure of any single name. Fund managers
report to the management of the Academy on their credit risk
management on a regular basis. The credit risk on bank deposits
is limited because the counterparties are authorised financial
institutions listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and

regulated under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

e T ArREEEH _Z—\FRZ
E-NFNB=+—HRAR{ENR REE
A#ER!

FEGERESERSREMT EATER
b - RBNE ARG R HISER o AER
EEL T BEREERFER - LUREZER
[ ARSI TR RACARBETRIR
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Summary quantitative data E@ SV 8Us

2019 2018
S B S B

Non-current financial assets FEnseHERE 2,079,166 4,139,776
Accounts receivable FEWERIE 1,142,047 125,953
Deposits e 357,461 44,285
Other receivables HithEWFRIE 5 1
Deposits with banks IRITER 37,962,039 33,997,530
41,540,718 38,307,545

(b) Liquidity risk

The Academy is not exposed to significant liquidity risk on its
financial liabilities. It manages its funds conservatively and
closely monitors its cash and cash equivalents in order to

meet continuous operational need.

Other payables are expected to be settled within one year or

are repayable on demand.

(c) Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk

The Academy'’s eXposure on fair value interest rate risk
mainly arises from bank balances which carry interest at
market rates.

Summary quantitative data [E42 S {V 8

(b) RENE & R

ABRUREHBEMBRROABHE SR
bz o AU ESFHEREE  HIFRH
WIREMREFEEE - UREEREFR

zE-

HA B RIRRRN —FRAFERZET
SKEFATFR o

(c) MizER

(i) F12= b

AEGEERR A R EFRERERKBES
SFIRET B Z R1THERS ©

2019 2018
S B SzE

Floating-rate financial assets FEFIRNEMEE
Deposits with banks WITHENR 37,904,091 33,925,390

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis for the Academy’s exposure to interest
rate risk arising from cash at bank is prepared based on the
management’s assessment that the exposure is considered
not significant.

(ii) Equity price risk

The investments in Unit Trust Funds classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (2018: available-for-
sale financial assets) expose the Academy to price risk. As fhe
Academy'’s policy is to invest only its surplus funds in such
investments, the exposure may not have a significant impact
on the Academy'’s financial position.

PREE S

REASE R $Y A A A BOF 2 B B (R BURE 0
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Summary quantitative data (E42 S {V (iR

2019 2018
S A S B
Non-current financial assets FEREBEMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets HHESRERE - 4,139,776
Financial assets at fair value through (ZAREBEABHNESHEE 2,079,166 =
profit or loss
2,079,166 4,139,776

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% increase/decrease in Unit Trust Funds prices at 31
August 2019 with all other variables held constant would
have decreased/increased deficit for the year (2018 : other
comprehensive deficit) by approximately $0.2 million (2018:
$0.4 million).

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared with the
assumption that the change in equity price had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to equity price risk for the relevant financial
instruments in existence at that date. The changes in equity
price represent management'’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in equity price at that date over the period

until the next annual reporting period.

The analysis is prepared on the same basis for year ended 31
August 2018.

(d) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy with
the fair value of each financial instrument categorised in its
entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant
to that fair value measurement. The levels are defined as

follows:

(i) Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial

instruments;

(ii) Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active
markets for similar financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or

indirectly based on observable market data; and

PRRE N

BRExHMEETE - (FEESEIE 10% Z1E
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(iii) Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques
in which any significant input is not based on observable

market data.

(i) BB * AREESFTERIEE - B
| RMUATHNAREEEATRENZYE
IR TR AT EE o

Level 2
Summary quantitative data [E2 SV 85 et
4 | S i E-ER
2019 2018
S Bk S A
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE - 4,139,776
Financial assets at fair value through IRAEEFTAIERNESREE

profit or loss 2,079,166 -
2,079,166 4,139,776

During the year, there were no transfers between instruments

in level 1 and level 2.

The net asset value of Unit Trust Funds is generally
determined by using the face value of deposits, deeming
intérest or similar income to accrue from day to day and
taking the mid-market price where available (and where an
electronic price fee utilised by the Unit Trust Fund Trustee for
the purposes of calculating the value of quoted investments
does not quoté a mid-market price, the mid-market price
shall be deemed not to be so available), and if not the last
traded price of the quoted investments held by the Unit Trust

Funds as at the close of business immediately prior to the

time of valuation on the appropriate market.
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18. HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for the year include the following:-

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 1 January 2019

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sales or Contribution of Assets between an Investor  To be determined
and its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of Material 1 January 2020
Amendments to HKAS 19, Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement y 1 January 2019
Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019
Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle 1 January 2019

The Academy has not early adopted these HKFRSs. Initial assessment has indicated that the adoption of these
HKFRSs would not have a significant impact on the Academy’s financial statements in the period of initial
application. The Academy will be continuing with the assessment of the impact of these HKFRSs and other
significant changes may be identified as a result.

18. EMIBIRF ARG RERBVES B 52
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19. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 19. BIBETFRIRE

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the hEBEREFENR —_E—NEF+"HEHE
Academy’s Board of Directors on 5 December 2019. AEGEEEHERIETIS -
52
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